
CITY OF DEXTER 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, March 15, 2016 @ 7:00 PM 
Location: Dexter City Offices, 8123 Main St. 

PNC Bank, Second Floor – Enter at rear door 

  

A G E N D A 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 Becky Murillo - Chair Ellen Han  
 John Coy Toni Henkemeyer     
 Julie Knight – Ex Officio Michael Cavanaugh  
  
3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES – February 16, 2016 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
5. CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION  
        
6. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATION 
 

A. Chair 
a. 5-H Coalition 

 
B. Commissioners and Ex Officio  

a. Tree Board 
b. City Council 
c. Art Selection Committee 
 

C. Staff Report 
          
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A. Discussion of: First Street Park Plan 
 
 B. Discussion of: Mill Creek Park Phase 2  
 
 C. Discussion of: Handicap Accessibility Requirements 
 
 C. Discussion of: Parks and Recreation Budget 
   
8. OLD BUSINESS  
 
 A. Discussion of: Park Maintenance Requests 
     
9. CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION 
 
10.        PROPOSED BUSINESS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 

 
11.        ADJOURNMENT      
 ANNUAL REVIEW SCHEDULE 

March/July – Annual Budget Review 
November – Master Plan, Goals, Objectives and Strategies Review 

January – Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) Review 



 

 

CITY OF DewEXTER 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

MEETING MINUTES 
February 16, 2016 

 
The regular meeting of the City of Dexter Parks and Recreation Commission was called to order 
at 7:012 pm at the City Offices, 8123 Main Street.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Commissioners Present: Becky Murillo, Ray Tell, Michael Cavanaugh, and Toni Henkemeyer 
 
Commissioners Absent: Ellen Han, John Coy 
 
Other Present: Justin Breyer, Assistant to the City Manager; Michelle Aniol, Community 
Development Manager; Andrea Kline, Huron River Watershed Council; residents. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
Motion by Henkemeyer, Seconded by Murillo to approve the minutes from January 19, 2016. 
 
Motion Adopted 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Cavanaugh, Seconded by Henkemeyer to appove the agenda as presented, with the 
following changes: 

 Adding Old Business Item A: First Street Park discussion. 

 Relabel Old Businesses Items B – D. 

 Move Old Business Items A – D before New Business. 
  
CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION 
 
None 
 
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATION 
 
A. CHAIR 
 
None. 
 
B. COMMISSIONERS AND EX-OFFICIO 
 
Ex Officio - Ray Tell discussed a development that is in progress at Baker St. and Grand St. Mr. 
Tell stated that the development would affect the proposed Phase 2 Trail, and now may be an 
opportune time to develop the next Phase of the Trail. There is a meeting about the 
development on Wednesday, February 17th at 7:00pm. 
 
Art Selection – Justin Breyer stated that there would be a meeting of the Art Selection 
Committee on February 24th at 7:30pm at the Dexter District Library. The Commission 
discussed the need to appoint a Parks and Recreation Commission member to the Art Selection 
Committee. Toni Henkemeyer volunteered to sit on the Art Selection Committee 
 



 

 

Motion by Murillo, Seconded by Cavanaugh to recommend to City Council that Toni 
Henkemeyer be appointed to the Art Selection Committee as the Parks and Recreation 
Commission representative.  
 
C.  STAFF REPORT 
 
Justin Breyer submitted his report per the packet. He reported that City Council approved the 
three items (WATS Pedestrian Counter, Trout Unlimited Letter, and SmithGroupJJR Proposal) 
that the Parks and Recreation Commission recommended at the last meeting. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2016 – 2021 PARKS 
AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN 
 
Justin Breyer discussed the developmental history of the Plan, the tools used to acquire public 
input, and the Action Items included in the Plan. Mr. Breyer also presented the public feedback 
that was submitted during the 30-day public comment period.  
 
Becky Murillo opened the public hearing at 7:28pm 
 
Andrea Kline from the Huron River Watershed Council spoke in support of the Master Plan. She 
stated that she was glad to see that support for the HRWC was included in the Plan. Mrs. Kline 
spoke about the investment that the HRWC has made in the Huron River Water Trail and about 
the Trail Towns initiative. She stated that HRWC is working with the Dexter Trail Towns team to 
identify opportunities and challenges regarding the Huron River and Mill Creek, many of which 
were included in the Plan.  
 
Becky Murillo closed the public hearing at 7:33pm. Discussion about the Parks and Recreation 
Master Plan followed. 

 Question – Was information about the Trail Towns or Water Trail included in the Plan? 
(Yes). 

 The Commission discussed the Community Park Path and the Capital Improvements 
Plan. (It was not included in the Master Plan). 

 The Commission discussed the illegal Huron River access point at the Mast Rd. Bridge 
and the hazards that exist at that site. (This was included in the Master Plan). There was 
a meeting over the summer about this illegal access. 

 
A. CONSIDERATION OF: 2016 – 2021 PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN  
 
Motion by Murillo, Seconded by Cavanaugh to approve the following resolution: 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Dexter has undertaken a Five Year Parks and Recreation Plan which 
describes the physical features, existing recreation facilities and the desired actions to be taken 
to improve and maintain parks and recreation facilities during the period of 2016 and 2021; and  
 
WHEREAS, public input was generated through a public survey and a public input session held 
on December 3, 2015 to provide an opportunity for citizens to express opinions, ask questions, 
and discuss all aspects of the Recreation Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held Tuesday, February 16, 2016 at the Dexter District Library 
during a Parks and Recreation Commission Regular Meeting; and  
 
WHEREAS the Plan has been developed as a guideline for improving parks and recreation for 
the residents of the City of Dexter; 
 



 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Dexter Parks and Recreation Commission 
recommends to the Dexter City Council adoption of the 2016 – 2021 Parks and Recreation 
Master Plan with the following changes to the presented document: 

 Edit language under the “Soils” heading; 

 Edit the map of First Street Park 

 Edit the map of Lion’s Park to include the new playground 

 Add items to appendix: 
o Notices of Public Hearing 
o Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes (2/16/2016) 
o City Council Minutes (2/22/2016) 
o Notice of 30-Day Public Comment Period 
o Website information related to public hearing and public comment period 

 Update maps with correct City boundaries 

 Edit Public Hearing Section (page 55) with information based on the Parks and 
Recreation public hearing. 

 
Yeas: Murillo, Henkemeyer, Cavanaugh, Tell 
Nays: None 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. DISCUSSION OF: FIRST STREET PARK  
 
Michelle Aniol presented the history of First Street Park and the concept development of the 
proposed structure. She stated that there had been no discussion about permitting or plot plans. 
Mrs. Aniol stated that the question would likely come up as to whether the Parks and Recreation 
Commission would still support the structure given that the cost to the City would now be more 
than $10,000 rather than the original $5,000. The Commission discussed the item. 

 Question – What are the Ringers paying for? (They agreed to pay the difference 
between the $5,000 for materials and the remainder of the construction cost.) 

 How many people attend Ringer events? (Approximately 40 per week for the league. 12 
or more on weekends.) 

 Commission members commented that the City has spent more than $10,000 on play 
structures that get used about as much as play structures. It is like a play structure for 
adults.  

 
Motion by Murillo, Seconded by Henkemeyer to recommend to City Council to approve the 
$10,180 for permitting and construction of First Street Park. 
 
B. DISCUSSION OF: CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN – PARK ITEMS  
 
Justin Breyer presented feedback from the Planning Commission about the proposed extension 
to the Community Park path. Planning Commission members stated that the area is good for 
sledding and maintaining open space. Parks and Recreation Commission members stated that 
they regularly see people walking on the path in Community Park, and their comments have 
been that they would like a larger loop to walk around. The Commission gave consensus to 
leave it in the CIP for 2018/2019 and then set up a time to discuss the project with the 
neighborhood.  
 
C. DISCUSSION OF: EASTER EGGSTRAVAGANZA  
 
Justin Breyer stated that the Easter Eggstravaganza would be held on March 26th. Becky Murillo 
stated that staff should order the same amount of Easter egg filler supplies as last year. Toni 



 

 

Henkemeyer stated that she may be out of town for the event and may not be able to play the 
Easter Bunny. 
 
D. DISCUSSION OF: PARKS MAINTENANCE REQUESTS 
 

 The basketball rims do not seem to have enough “give,” so the ball ends up going flying 
far from the court whenever the ball hits them. 

 The Ice Rink was up too long last year, please take it down sooner this year.  

 Paul McCann asked about the path to the ADA picnic table in Mill Creek Park, and it was 
removed shortly thereafter. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
E. DISCUSSION OF: BUDGET PREPARATIONS 
 
The Commission further discussed the construction of a pathway to the cement slab in Mill 
Creek Park and ADA requirements. The Commission asked staff to investigate ADA standards. 
Justin Breyer stated that the Commission would be discussing the Budget at the next meeting. 
 
CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION  
 
None 
 
PROPOSED BUSINESS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS  
None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Murillo, Seconded by Henkemeyer to adjourn at 8:50 pm 
Motion Adopted 
 
 
Justin Breyer 
Assistant to the City Manager 



     
       CITY OF DEXTER 

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 
 8140 Main Street  Dexter, Michigan 48130-1092  (734) 426-8303  Fax (734) 426-5614  www.Dextermi.gov 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Parks and Recreation Commission 
FROM:  Justin Breyer, Assistant to the City Manager 
RE:  REPORT 
DATE:  March 16, 2016 
 

 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan 
The Parks and Recreation Master Plan was approved by City Council on February 22nd. The Plan was 
submitted to the Michigan Department of Natural Resources on February 29th. Our MDNR representative will 
be reviewing the Plan over the next month and may provide feedback. 
 
Lion’s Park Installation 
I have been in communication with GameTime, our Lion’s Park equipment vendor, and they provided me with 
a list of dates that they are unavailable to assist with a Community Build Day. Based on their list of dates and 
the dates of major City-wide events, it appears that Saturday, June 18th may be a good day for the installation. 
Please let me know if this date will work for you. 
 
A representative from our engineering firm, OHM will be coming out over the next few weeks to stake the 
playground site. After that, we are hoping to have the site leveled around mid to late April. Knight’s Excavating 
has offered to perform this service free of charge. 
 
Per City Ordinance, the playground will be going to Planning Commission in April for zoning compliance. The 
Planning Commission is required to determine whether the new proposed use (playground) is compatible with 
the current zoning of the site. 
 
Winter Ice Rink 
The Ice Rink should be removed within the next few weeks. I will be talking with the Department of Public 
Works on Monday, March 14th to determine when they may be able to remove it. 
 
Capital Improvements Plan 
The Planning Commission voted to set a public hearing date of Monday, April 4th, 2016 for the Capital 
Improvements Plan. As Parks and Recreation Commission members will remember, the Planning Commission 
had issues with including the Community Park path extension in the CIP. At their meeting on March 7th, the 
Planning Commission voted to remove any language related to the Community Park path extension from the 
CIP. If there are any Parks and Recreation Commission members that feel strongly about this project, they 
may wish to speak at the public hearing on April 4th, before the Planning Commission votes on the Plan.  
 
Mill Creek Park Trail Phase 2 and TIP Grant Funding 
Since the last Parks and Recreation Commission meeting, staff has learned that the Washtenaw Area 
Transportation Study (WATS) will likely be removing the Mill Creek Park Trail Phase 2 from their Transpiration 
Improvement Program (TIP) funding plan. The project had been planned to receive approximately $180,000 for 
the 2016-2017 fiscal year. Despite the project’s survival in the plan after several rounds of project reviews, 
during the week of March 7th, staff was informed that WATS would likely be removing our project from their 
funding plan.  
 
 

http://www.dextermi.gov/


During the City Council goal setting session on March 2nd, several Councilmembers indicated that the project 
would not be as high of a priority at this time if the City were to not have the TIP grant funding. In addition, 
without this funding, there is no outside pressure to move forward with the Michigan Department of Natural 
Resources grant. There are a number of positives associated with waiting to apply for the MDNR Grant, these 
include:  

 A completion of the wetland delineation study during the summer of 2016. This will give us a better 
understanding of what sections of the trail can be asphalt versus boardwalk. In turn, we will have a 
better understanding of the total cost of the project. 

 Several surrounding organizations will be applying this year for MDNR grant funding, which may hurt 
the City’s chances of winning the grant. These projects include a segment of the Border-to-Border Trail, 
and the Huron-Waterloo Pathways Initiative “The Loop.” The MDNR Trust Fund Board typically prefers 
to allocate funding to projects throughout the State. 

 Without the TIP Grant, the City would no longer be able to match federal and state grant funding 
sources against one another, which would make the City responsible for 100% of the MDNR Trust 
Fund grant match. 

 
First Street Park 
City Council discussed the Parks and Recreation Commission’s recommendation to fund the permitting and 
$5,000 worth of materials for the construction of the First Street Park shelter. City Council chose not to take 
action on this item. Members of Council indicated at the March 2nd goal setting session that they would like to 
see a formal plan for the Park before committing to funding improvements. Some ideas were generated at the 
meeting, including recruiting a planning or landscape architecture student to create a plan for a school project.  
 
Budget/Discussion 
With all of the other items included in this report in-mind, the Parks and Recreation Commission will need to 
discuss the annual Budget at the March meeting. Topics for discussion include: 

 Winter Ice Rink Liners (will need to buy a new liner annually, already built-in) 

 SmithGroupJJR – Task 2, Wetland Delineation 

 SmithGroupJJR – Task 3, Landscape Plan for Mill Creek Park North 

 First Street Park Improvements to implement whatever plan may be developed 

 Pedestrian Counter Installation 

 PlantWise Maintenance of  

 Any Possible ADA Improvements 
 
ADA Requirements 
After our discussion at the last Parks and Recreation Commission meeting, I did some research and was able 
to find a document that provides some detail on ADA requirements regarding playgrounds. I have provided this 
document as an attachment to the packet.  
 
Please feel free to contact me prior to the meeting with any questions, etc. 
 
Thank you. 
 



Calculations as of 06/30/2016

03/11/2016 05:08 PM
User: JUSTIN
DB: Dexter

Page: 1/1BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF DEXTER

2015-16
ACTIVITY

THRU 06/30/16

2015-16
AMENDED
BUDGET

2015-16
ORIGINAL
BUDGET

2014-15
PROJECTED
ACTIVITYDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

Dept 751-PARKS & RECREATION
2% OF DAN

1,2191,8001,8002,626SALARIES - NON UNION101-751-703.000

PORTION OF SUMMER HELP, LANDSCAPING FOR MILL CREEK PARK
9,83812,00012,00012,159SALARIES - PART TIME101-751-703.001

PORTION OF FOUR UNION EMPLOYEES
11,05617,00017,00017,000SALARIES - UNION101-751-704.000

200200136SALARIES - OVERTIME101-751-705.000
1,0001,000SALARIES - PARK COMMISSIONERS101-751-709.000

7.65% OF WAGES
1,6312,5002,5002,800SOCIAL SECURITY & MEDICARE101-751-720.000

9.5% INCREASE
2,3313,5003,5002,997HEALTH & DENTAL INSURANCE101-751-721.000

PORTION OF FOUR UNION EMPLOYEES
4710010065LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE101-751-722.000

6410010059DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN101-751-723.003

LANDSCAPING BED MAINTENANCE, WOOD CHIPS
2,1904,0004,0004,000LANDSCAPE SUPPLIES101-751-731.000

INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, LINER
1,8103,0003,0002,796ICE RINK SUPPLIES101-751-732.000

1261,0001,000204OPERATING SUPPLIES101-751-740.000

JJR FOR ASSISTANCE WITH GRANT APPLICATIONS AND REQUIRED STREAM MONITORING
4,1546,0006,00033,949PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-751-802.000

PLANT WISE FOR INVASIVE SPECIES CONTROL; MAINTENANCE OF RAIN GARDENS
6,6726,5006,5006,340CONTRACTED SERVICES101-751-803.000

8531,0001,0001,803PRINTING & PUBLISHING101-751-901.000

REPAIR OF EQUIPMENT AND BENCHES
2,0185,0005,000299EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE & REPAIR101-751-937.000

INTERNAL EQUIPMENT RENTALS (TRANSFER TO FUND 402)
5,82713,00013,00013,103EQUIPMENT RENTALS101-751-941.000

4,6455,0005,0004,240PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL101-751-944.000

LUMINARY SUPPORT, EASTER EGG HUNT
1,5422,0002,0002,000MISCELLANEOUS101-751-955.000

165500500453MEMBERSHIPS & DUES101-751-958.000

EDISON STREET PARK
60,40457,50030,0005,000CONTRACTED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS101-751-970.000

NEW TRASH CANS, BENCHES
1,0005,0005,0002,155EQUIPMENT101-751-977.000

(117,592)(147,700)(120,200)(114,184)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 751-PARKS & RECREAT

959,016928,908956,4081,215,501ENDING FUND BALANCE
1,076,6081,076,6081,076,6081,329,685BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

117,592147,700120,200114,184APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 101
ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 101

(117,592)(147,700)(120,200)(114,184)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 101



DRAFT 3/20/13

FY 2014-15 Parks and Recreation Commission Budget Request

2013-2014 

Budget

Spent as of 

3/12/14

14-15 Draft 

Budget

Salaries/Benefits

Full Time $28,200 $26,632 $31,500

Part Time $10,700 $7,227 $11,000

Commissioners $1,500 $0 $1,000

Memberships $418 $200

Park Improvement 

Needs:

Commununity Park Path 

Reconstruction $15,000 $0 $21,000

Benches/Trash Cans/Tables $4,000 $3,356 $7,000

Horseshoe Park Storage $5,000

Bike Racks-coordinate with 5H 

grant $1,000 $735 $0

Community Park Soccer Nets $2,000 $1,998 $0

Wood Chips - all parks $3,000 $2,980 $0

Operating Supplies $1,000 $722 $1,000

Mill Creek Park Landscaping 

Maintenance; other park 

maintenance $5,000 $754 $4,000

Plantwise (Mill Creek Park Invasive 

Species) $4,725 $5,000

Annual Stream Monitoring (5 year 

MDEQ requirement for MCP rock 

veins $2,300 $2,300 $2,300

JJR - Mill Creek Park Maintenance Memo $880

JJR - Possible Assistance with Master Plan $5,700

Portable Toilet Rental $2,200 $3,915 $3,700

Internal Equipment Rental $5,000 $7,281 $7,500

Ice Rink

Installation $1,600 $1,600 $1,600

Maintenance $1,600 $564 $1,600

New Liner $700 $696 $800

New Kick plates $800 $692

Easter Eggstravaganza and 

Geocache $700 $1,021 $1,000

Misc. Equipment 

Repairs/Replacement $6,000 $6,443 $6,000

Dexter Daze Event Partnership $1,000

Luminary Support $1,000 $1,000

5H Grant for Walking Maps $1,965 $0

5H Grant for Wellness Walks $840 $0

Marketing $1,000 $1,000

TOTAL $99,300 $78,744 $113,900

Event/Promotional Materials















U.S. Access Board
Summary of Accessibility Guidelines  

for Play Areas

ACCESSIBLE PLAY AREAS
A Summary of Accessibility Guidelines  
for Play Areas 



U.S. Access Board
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �
October �005

IntroductIon
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) is a comprehensive civil rights law that prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability. The ADA requires that newly constructed and altered 
State and local government facilities, places of public accommodation, and commercial facili-
ties be readily accessible to, and usable by, individuals with disabilities. Recreational facilities, 
including play areas, are among the facilities required to comply with the ADA. 

The Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board - often referred to as the 
“Access Board” - has developed accessibility guidelines for newly constructed and altered 
play areas. The play area guidelines are a supplement to the Americans with Disabilities Act 
Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG). Once these guidelines are adopted as enforceable standards 
by the Department of Justice, all newly constructed and altered play areas covered by the ADA 
will be required to comply.  These guidelines also apply to play areas covered by the Architectural 
Barriers Act (ABA).

Summary
This guide is intended to help designers and operators in using the accessibility guidelines for 

play areas. These guidelines establish minimum accessibility requirements for newly constructed 
and altered play areas. This guide is not a collection of playground designs. Rather, it provides 
specifications for elements within a play area to create a general level of usability for children 
with disabilities. Emphasis is placed on ensuring that children with disabilities are generally able 
to access the diversity of components provided in a play area. Designers and operators are encour-
aged to exceed the guidelines where possible to provide increased accessibility and opportunities. 
Incorporating accessibility into the design of a play area should begin early in the planning proc-
ess with consideration to layout, circulation paths, and the selection of play components. 

The play area guidelines were developed with significant public input and carefully consid-
ered the balancing of costs, safety, and accessibility. The Access Board sponsored a Regulatory 
Negotiation Committee to develop proposed guidelines. The public was given an opportunity to 
comment on the proposed guidelines and the Access Board made changes to the proposed guide-
lines based on the public comments. The Regulatory Negotiation Committee represented the fol-
lowing groups and associations:

American Society of Landscape Architects National Easter Seal Society
ASTM Public Playground Committee National League of Cities
ASTM Soft Contained Play Committee National Parent-Teacher Association
ASTM Playground Surfacing Systems Committee National Recreation and Park Association
International Play Equipment Manufacturers Association Spina Bifida Association of America
National Association of Counties TASH
National Association of Elementary School Principals United Cerebral Palsy Association
National Child Care Association U.S. Access Board
National Council on Independent Living

This guide is designed to assist in using the play area accessibility guidelines and is divided into 
the following sections:

Where Do the Play Area Guidelines Apply?
What is a Play Component?
How Many Play Components Must Be on an Accessible Route?
What Are the Requirements for Accessible Routes?
What Other Accessibility Requirements Apply to Play Components?
Soft Contained Play Structures

Copies of the play area accessibility guidelines and further technical assistance can be obtained 
from the U.S. Access Board, 1331 F Street, Suite 1000 NW, Washington, DC 20004-1111; 800-
872-2253, 800-993-2822 (TTY); www.access-board.gov. Alternate formats of this document are 
also available upon request.



U.S. Access Board
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �

contentS

Play Area terms 4-5

Where do the Play Area Guidelines Apply? 6-8
 New Construction ..................................................................................6
 Alterations ..............................................................................................6
 Equivalent Facilitation ...........................................................................6
 Phasing in Play Areas ............................................................................7
 Play Areas Separated By Age ................................................................8
 Geographically Separated Play Areas ....................................................8

What is a Play component? 9-13
 Play Components ...................................................................................9
 Different “Types” ............................................................................10-11
 Elevated Play Components ..................................................................12
 Ground-Level Play Components .........................................................13

How Many Play components Must Be on An  
     Accessible route? 14-18
 Ground Level Play Components - One of Each Type .........................14
 Ground Level Requirements - Based on Elevated Play Components ...15
 Elevated Play Components ..................................................................16

Step-by-Step Guide 17

Play Area evaluation example 18

What Are the requirements For  
     Accessible routes? 19-32
 Accessible Routes ................................................................................19
 Ground-Level Accessible Routes .................................................. 20-21
 Accessible Ground Surfaces ................................................................22
 Accessible Surfaces Located in the Use Zone............................... 22-23
 Elevated Accessible Routes .................................................................24
 When Ramps Are Required ........................................................... 25-27
 When Transfer Systems Are Used ................................................. 28-31
 Connected Elevated Components ........................................................32

What other Accessibility requirements  
     Apply to Play components? 33-37
 Clear Floor or Ground Space ...............................................................33
 Maneuvering Space ..............................................................................34
 Entry Points and Seats .........................................................................35
 Play Tables ...........................................................................................36
 Reach Ranges (Advisory) ....................................................................37

Soft contained Play Structures 38

Alterations 39

Acknowledgements 40



U.S. Access Board
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �

Play Area terms
Many terms are used throughout this guide to describe the play area guidelines. Familiarity 
with these terms is important when applying the guidelines. Other definitions are provided in  
ADA/ABA.

ABA - Architectural Barriers Act

Access Board – An independent Federal agency that develops accessibility guidelines under the 
ADA and other laws. The Access Board is also known as the Architectural and Transportation 
Barriers Compliance Board.

Accessible – Describes a site, building, facility, or portion thereof that complies with the play 
area guidelines.

Accessible Route – A continuous unobstructed path connecting all accessible elements and spaces 
of a building or facility. Inside the boundary of the play area, accessible routes may include 
platforms, ramps, elevators, lifts. Outside the boundary of the play area, accessible routes may 
also include parking access aisles, curb ramps, crosswalks at vehicular ways, walks, ramps, 
and lifts.

ADA – Americans with Disabilities Act.

Alteration –  An alteration is a change to a building or facility that affects or could affect the 
usability of the building of facility or part thereof.  Alterations include, but are not limited to, 
remodeling, renovation, rehabilitation, reconstruction, historic restoration, resurfacing of cir-
culation paths or vehicular ways, changes or rearrangement of structural parts or elements, and 
changes or rearrangement in the plan configuration of walls and full-height partitions. Normal 
maintenance is not an alteration unless it affects the usability of the facility (see section on 
alterations for more details).

Amusement Attraction – Any facility, or portion of a facility, located within an amusement park 
or theme park, that provides amusement without the use of an amusement device. Examples 
include, but are not limited to, fun houses, barrels, and other attractions without seats.

ASTM – American Society for Testing and Materials.

Berm – A sloped surface at ground level designed to ascend or descend in elevation.

Clear – Unobstructed.

Composite Play Structure – Two or more play structures attached or functionally linked, to cre-
ate one integral unit that provides more than one play activity (ASTM F 1487-01).

Cross Slope – The slope that is perpendicular to the direction of travel (see running slope).

Elevated Play Component – A play component that is approached above or below grade and that 
is part of a composite play structure consisting of two or more play components attached or 
functionally linked to create an integrated unit providing more than one play activity.

PlAy AreA terMS



U.S. Access Board
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page 5

Facility – All or any portion of buildings, structures, site improvements, elements and pedestrian 
routes or vehicle ways located on a site.

Ground Level Play Component – A play component that is approached and exited at the  
ground level.

Play Area – A portion of a site containing play components designed and constructed for  
children.

Play Component – An element intended to generate specific opportunities for play, socialization, 
or learning. Play components may be manufactured or natural, and may be stand alone or part 
of a composite play structure.

Ramp – A walking surface that has a running slope of greater that 1:20.

Running Slope – The slope that is parallel to the direction of travel (see cross slope).

Site – A parcel of land bounded by a property line or a designated portion of a public right-of-
way.

Soft Contained Play Structure – A play structure made up of one or more components where 
the user enters a fully enclosed play environment that utilizes pliable materials (e.g., plastic, 
netting, fabric).

Use Zone – The ground level area beneath and immediately adjacent to a play structure or piece 
of equipment that is designated by ASTM F 1487 Standard Consumer Safety Performance 
Specification for Playground Equipment for Public Use for unrestricted circulation. This is 
the play surface upon which it is predicted a user would land when falling from or exiting the 
equipment.

1

PlAy AreA terMS



U.S. Access Board
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �

new construction
The play area guidelines in this guide apply to all newly designed or constructed play areas 
for children ages 2 and older.

This includes play areas located in a variety of settings: parks, schools, childcare facilities, shop-
ping centers, and public gathering areas. Owners or operators of newly constructed play areas are 
responsible for complying with these guidelines.

The play area guidelines do not apply to:
• Family childcare facilities where the proprietor resides
• Amusement attractions
• Religious entities

This large play area designed for the same age group is part of a public park system. The 
total of all the play components in this play area - which includes multiple composite struc-
tures - must be counted when applying the play area guidelines.

Alterations
The play area guidelines also apply to existing play areas where alterations occur. Further infor-
mation regarding the application of the play area guidelines to altered play areas can be found on 
page 39.

equivalent Facilitation
Designs that result in products or technologies as alternatives to those prescribed, provided  
substantially equivalent or greater accessibilty and usability.  

Equivalent facilitation is the concept of utilizing innovative solutions and new technology, design, 
or materials in order to satisfy the guidelines. These alternative solutions provide equal access and 
take advantage of new developments, but may differ technically from specific guidelines.

2

WHere do tHe PlAy AreA GuIdelIneS APPly?



U.S. Access Board
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas 

Page �

Phasing in Play Areas
When play areas are constructed in phases, they must continue to meet the play area guidelines 
throughout construction. The initial phase area must meet the guidelines, and then at each succes-
sive phase the whole play area must be reassessed to assure compliance.

This play area will be installed in two phases. As each phase is completed, the entire play area 
must be reevaluated for compliance.

Prior to phase one, the 
first structure is evaluated 
for compliance, since the 
guidelines are based on a 
minimum number of play 

components required to be 
on an accessible route.

At the onset of phase two, the play area is reevaluated in its entirety.

“Phased designs” are 
play areas developed 
to be installed in dif-
ferent stages, allowing 
the play area to grow 
in a planned manner 
while accommodating 
budgets, fund raising, 
or community approval 
processes.

3

5

WHere do tHe PlAy AreA GuIdelIneS APPly?



U.S. Access Board
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �

Play Areas Separated by Age
To reduce the risk of injury, safety guidelines recommend separate play areas for different 
age groups. In applying the guidelines, play areas designed for different age groups should 
be considered separately.

A play area designed for 2 to 5 year-olds is considered separate from one for 5 to 12 year-olds. 
Therefore, compliance with the guidelines must be considered for each individual play area.

This dual play area designed for 2 to 5 year-olds and 5 to 12 year-olds shares resilient 
surfacing. Each section must be evaluated separately.

Geographically Separated Play Areas

Large geographical spaces may contain several play areas within one park setting. Where 
play areas are geographically separated on a site, they are considered separate play areas. 
The accessibility guidelines apply to each play area.

6

7

WHere do tHe PlAy AreA GuIdelIneS APPly?



U.S. Access Board  
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �

Play components
A play component is an element designed to generate specific opportunities for play, sociali-
zation, and learning. Play components may be manufactured or natural, and may be stand 
alone or part of a composite play structure. Swings, spring riders, water tables, playhouses, 
slides, and climbers are among the many different play components.

For the purpose of these guidelines, ramps, transfer systems, steps, decks, and roofs are not con-
sidered play components. These elements are generally used to link other elements on a composite 
play structure. Although socialization and pretend play can occur on these elements, they are not 
primarily intended for play.

Spring rider
8

Climber
9

Slide
11

Swing
10

WHere do tHe PlAy AreA GuIdelIneS APPly?



U.S. Access Board
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page 10

When applying the play area guidelines, it is important to identify the different play experi-
ences play components can provide.

different “types”
At least one of each type of play component provided at ground level in a play area must be on 
an accessible route.

Different “types” of play components are based on the general experience provided by the play 
component. Different types include, but are not limited to, experiences such as rocking, swinging, 
climbing, spinning, and sliding.

A Swinging Type

A Rocking Type

This single play component provides one type of play experience for multiple individuals.

“Rocking” is an 
example of horizontal 
movement that can be 
backwards, forwards, 
sideways or even cir-
cular in nature.

“Sliding” is an example 
of rapid descent that 
utilizes the force of 
gravity.

12

13

14

WHere do tHe PlAy AreA GuIdelIneS APPly?



U.S. Access Board
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page 11

The number of individuals who can play on a play component at once does not determine the 
quantity of play components provided in a play area. A play component can hold many children 
but is considered one type of play experience - or one play component - in the play area.

Examples of Sliding Types

While a spiral slide provides a slightly dif-
ferent experience from a straight slide, the 
primary experience - a sense of rapid descent 
or sliding - is common to both activities. 
Therefore, a spiral slide and a straight slide 
are considered one “type” of play experience.

16

15

WHAt IS A PlAy coMPonent?



U.S. Access Board
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page 1�

elevated Play components
An elevated play component is a play component that is approached above or below grade and 
is part of a composite play structure. Play components that are attached to a composite play 
structure and that can be approached from a platform or deck area are considered elevated play  
components. 

This climber is considered an elevated  
component, since it can be approached or exited 
from the ground level or above grade from a  
platform or deck on a composite play structure.

17

18

WHAt IS A PlAy coMPonent?



U.S. Access Board
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page 1�

Ground-level Play components
Ground-level play components are items that can be approached and exited at ground level. For 
example, a child approaches a spring rider at ground level via the accessible route. The child 
may ride then exit directly back onto the accessible route. The activity is considered ground level 
because the child approaches and exits it from the ground-level route.

Ground-level play components may be part of a composite structure.

Ground-level components may also be free-standing in a play area.

When more than one ground-level play component is required on an accessible route, the play 
components must be integrated. Designers should consider the optimal layout of ground-level 
play components to foster interaction and socialization among all children. Grouping all ground-
level play components accessed by children with disabilities in one location does not constitute 
integration.

“Ground-level compo-
nents” are approached 
and exited at ground 
level.

Ground-level play com- 
ponents may include 
items such as swings, 
spring riders, and 
panels. 

Freestanding slides  
are considered ground- 
level components 
for the purpose of 
these guidelines. An 
accessible route must 
connect to the ladder 
or steps, and to the 
exit of the slide. While 
this solution does not 
provide access for all 
children, it gives many 
individuals the oppor-
tunity to access play 
components.

19

20 21

WHAt IS A PlAy coMPonent?



U.S. Access Board 
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

 

Page 1�

Ground-level Play components
There are two requirements addressing how many ground-level play compo-
nents must be on an accessible route:
• One of Each Type
•  Ground-Level Requirements based on the number of Elevated Play 

Components

one of each type
At least one of each type of ground-level play component that is present in the play 
area must be on an accessible route.

As an example, this play area includes a composite play structure, two spring riders and 
a swing set (see inset). To meet the requirement, an accessible route must connect to 
at least one spring rider and one swing for one of each type of ground-level play experi-
ences which are present in the play area.

The above step-by-step 
guide is intended to 
assist when applying 
the play area guidelines. 
A detailed description 
is provided on page 17.

A “ground-level play 
component” is a play 
component that is 
approached and exited 
at the ground level.

23

22

HoW MAny PlAy coMPonentS MuSt Be on An AcceSSIBle route?



U.S. Access Board 
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page 15

Ground level requirements  
Based on elevated Play components
The number and variety of ground-level play components required to be on an 
accessible route is also determined by the number of elevated components provided 
in the play area. 

The intent of this requirement is to provide a variety of experiences for individuals 
who choose to remain with their mobility aids, or choose not to transfer to elevated 
play components.

If ramps provide access to at least 50 percent of the elevated play components - which must include 
at least three different play types - then additional ground-level components are not required.

In the play area shown on page 14, the composite structure has four elevated play components 
(bubble panel, slide, steering wheel, and tic-tac-toe panel). According to the table, a minimum of 
one ground level play component must be provided, and a minimum of one different type. The 
spring rider or swing can be used to meet the “one of each type” requirement and can also be used 
to meet the minimum number determined by Table 240.2.1.2.

The above step-by-
step guide is intended 
to assist when apply-
ing the play area 
guidelines. A detailed 
description is provided 
on page 17.

The number of ground-
level components de- 
termined by “one of 
each type” can also 
fulfill the minimum 
ground level require-
ment that is indicated 
by the elevated play 
components table.

HoW MAny PlAy coMPonentS MuSt Be on An AcceSSIBle route?

Table 240.2.1.2



U.S. Access Board 
Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page 1�

The above step-by-step 
guide is intended to 
assist when applying 
the play area guidelines. 
A detailed description 
is provided on page 17.

An “elevated play 
component” is a play 
component reached 
from above or below 
grade, and is part of a 
composite play struc-
ture.

HoW MAny PlAy coMPonentS MuSt Be on An AcceSSIBle route?

elevated Play components
At least 50 percent of the elevated play components must be on an  
accessible route.

Play areas with 20 or more elevated components must use ramps to connect a minimum of 
25 percent of those components. A transfer system or ramps may connect the other elevated 
play components required on an accessible route.

Play areas with less than 20 elevated play components may use a transfer system instead of 
ramps to connect at least 50 percent of the elevated components.

24

25



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page 1�

Step-by-Step Guide
The following step-by-step guide has been provided to assist in evaluating a play area for meet-
ing the minimum requirements of these guidelines. The guide has been arranged in four steps and 
provides spaces to fill in numeric values of play components for evaluating a specific play area 
design.

The step-by-step guide is used throughout the remainder of this guide as a key, shown in the upper 
corner of each new section where it applies. 

SteP-By-SteP GuIde on APPlyInG GuIdlIneS



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page 1�

The example below illustrates a proposed design for a new play area. Each section illustrated 
in the flow chart provides guidelines for the following design tasks:

•  Determining the 
number of play 
components

•  Assessing the 
variety of play 
types

•  Determining how 
many play com-
ponents must be 
on an accessible 
route

•  Determining 
when ramps are 
required and 
when transfer 
systems are per-
mitted

Refer to this example while reviewing the concepts explained in this guide, to review how accessibility 
guidelines are applied to play area designs.

Different types of  
Play Experience at 
Ground-level
   1 Spring Rider
+ 1 Swing 
  2 Types

Total # of elevated  
components
  1 Triple Slide
  1 Interactive Panel
  1 Overhead Curved Ladder
+ 1 Banister Bars  
  4 total

50% of 4 elevated components = 
2 elevated components

The greater number 
is the minimum  
requirement

“One of Each Type” 
Table 240.2.1.2 = 1

Proposed Play Area Design

Public FacilityParking Lot

Spring 
Rider

Existing Sidewalk
36” wide

Swing 
Set

Loose fill 
Gravel

Rubber 
Tile Safety 

Surface

Banister 
Bars

Overhead 
Curved Ladder

Interactive
Panel

Triple 
Slide Transfer System

3 2

4

1 1

2

4
Table 240.2.1.2

PlAy AreA evAluAtIon exAMPle



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page 1�

ADAAG chapter 4 addresses accessible routes that connect the play area to the school, parking lot, 
or facility that it serves. Operators or owners of play areas are subject to all the other requirements 
of the ADA, including the obligation to provide individuals with disabilities an equal opportunity 
to enjoy the play area provided by that facility.

This section describes the various features of accessible routes within a play area, including loca-
tion, clear width, slope, and accessible surfaces. 

Accessible routes
An accessible route is a pathway specifically designed to provide access for individuals with 
disabilities, including those using wheelchairs or mobility devices.

Accessible routes inside the boundaries of play areas are addressed in the play area guide-
lines. Technical provisions address the width, slope, and surface of both ground-level and 
elevated accessible routes.

There are two types of accessible routes:
• Ground-level
• Elevated

This ground-level route connects 
ground components and the transfer 
system which connects elevated com-
ponents.

This elevated route connects 
 elevated play components 
 on a composite structure.

The accessible route 
must connect all 
entry and exit points 
of accessible play 
components.

Clear floor space 
required at play compo-
nents and maneuvering 
space can overlap the 
accessible route.

Incorporating addi-
tional circulation space 
around high-use  play 
components creates 
extra room for move-
ment and accessibility 
for everyone using the 
play area.

26

27

28

    WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �0

Ground-level Accessible routes
A ground-level accessible route connects play components at ground level.

• 60 inches (1525 mm) minimum clear width
• 1:16 maximum slope

The route may narrow down to 36 inches (915 mm) for a distance 
of 60 inches (1525 mm). This permits flexibility to work around site 
design features like existing equipment or trees.

The required 60-inch width enables 
two wheelchairs to pass each other  

or to change direction.

Smaller play areas - those that are less than 1,000 square feet (304.8 square meters) - may have 
ground-level accessible routes that are 44 inches (1120 mm) clear width. A wheelchair turning 
space must be provided where the route exceeds 30 feet (9.14 mm) in length.

At ground level, objects may not protrude into the 60-inch wide space of an accessible route up 
to or below the height of 80 inches (2030 mm), measured above the accessible route surface. The 
80-inch clearance applies only to the 60-inch accessible route, and is not required for the entire 
play area.

The play area provides a fun accessible roadway 
theme.  The protective shelters for the benches 
have been set outside the boundary of the route 
providing the 80 inches of clearance required on 
the route.

The 80-inch vertical 
clearance applies to 
ground-level routes 
only, and not elevated 
routes. This allows 
features like protective 
roofs and sun shelters 
to be present.

29

30

31

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �1

Ground-level Accessible routes

Maximum Slope at Ground level
The maximum allowable slope for a ground-level accessible route is 1:16.

Berms are sometimes used to provide access to elevated play areas. A berm may be a natural 
sloped surface that is present in a hilly play area site, or a ground-level route built with slopes.

Designers are encouraged to consider edge protection and handrails on berms where there may be 
a drop-off. Remember the maximum slope of this “ground-level accessible route” is 1:16.

However, handrails are not required on ground-level accessible routes. This is permitted since the 
handrails may become a safety hazard in the “use zone.”

This play area provides a  
bermed accessible route.

To accommodate a height change along the perimeter of a play area - like these rubber safety 
tiles placed on an asphalt surface - an allowable 1:12 slope is utilized for the transition at the 
boundary of the play area.

32

33

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

Accessible Ground Surfaces
Ground surfaces along accessible routes, clear floor or ground spaces, and maneuvering 
spaces, must comply with the American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) F 1951-
99 Standard Specification for Determination of Accessibility to Surface Systems Under and 
Around Playground Equipment.

This standard assesses the accessibility of a surface by measuring the work an individual must 
exert to propel a wheelchair across the surface. The standard includes tests of effort for both 
straight-ahead and turning movements, using a force wheel on a rehabilitation wheelchair as the 
measuring device. To meet the standard, the force required must be less than that which is required 
to propel the wheelchair up a ramp with a slope of 1:14. 

When selecting ground surfaces, operators should request information about compliance with the 
ASTM F 1292-04 standard.

Accessible surfaces can include impact-attenuating tiles made of recycled rubber and engi-
neered wood fiber that meet the ASTM requirements for accessibility and safety. The design 
can be created so safety is not compromised for individuals using the play area where both 
standards are applied. 

Accessible Surfaces located In the use Zone
If located within the use zone, accessible ground surfaces must also be impact attenuating and 
meet ASTM F 1292-04 Standard Specification for Impact Attenuation of Surface Systems Under 
and Around Playground Equipment.

The “use zone” is 
a ground level area 
beneath and immedi-
ately adjacent to a play 
structure or piece of 
equipment that is des-
ignated for unrestricted 
circulation around 
the equipment. It is 
predicted that a user 
would fall and land or 
exit the equipment on 
the surface of the use 
zone.

The American Society 
for Testing and Materials 
(ASTM) has established 
safety standards for 
play areas, including 
resilient surfaces. For 
further information or 
to purchase these stan-
dards, contact ASTM, 
100 Barr Harbor Drive, 
West Conshohocken, 
PA 19428-2959, 
www.astm.org.

34

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

At the time of this publi-
cation, rubber surfacing 
and some engineered 
wood fiber products 
meet the ASTM F 1951-
99 standard . The fact 
that a specific product 
meets the ASTM 1951-
99 standard does not 
necessarily mean 
that all other similar 
products will meet the 
standard. 

Operators interested in 
selecting surfaces to 
comply with the play 
area guidelines, should 
consult individual prod-
uct manufacturers to 
determine compliance 
with ASTM F 1951-99.

Accessible and non-accessible surfaces can be combined to provide variety and excitement 
in the play area.

Rubber surfacing tiles facilitate  
access in this play area.

Ground surfaces must be inspected and maintained 
regularly and frequently to ensure continued compli-
ance with the ASTM F 1292-04 standard. The frequency 
of maintenance and inspection of resilient surfacing 
depends on the amount of use and the type of surfacing 
installed.

Accessible surfacing can be designed 
to complement the theme of the play 
area, while providing full access and 
visually integrating the surface into 
the overall design. Individuals of all 
abilities will enjoy the added benefits 
of an imaginative design.

Engineered wood fiber surfaces will require frequent main-
tenance to comply with the ASTM F 1292-04 standard 
because of surface displacement due to user activity or 
other factors.

Designers and operators are likely to choose materials that 
best serve the needs of each play area. The type of material 
selected will affect the frequency and cost of maintenance.

35 36

37

38

39

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

elevated Accessible routes
An elevated accessible route is the path used for connecting elevated play components.

Elevated accessible routes must connect the entry and exit points of at least 50 percent of the 
elevated play components provided in the play area.

Two common methods for providing access to elevated play components are ramps and transfer 
systems. Ramps are the preferred method since not all children who use wheelchairs or other 
mobility devices may be able to use - or may choose not to use - transfer systems.

This photo illus-
trates an elevated 
accessible route:

• 36-inch (915 
mm) clear width
•  32-inch (815 mm) narrowed width permitted for 24-inch (610 mm) length to accommodate  

features in the composite structure
• 12-inch (305 mm) rise maximum per ramp run
•  Top of handrail gripping surfaces shall be 

20 inches (510 mm) minimum to 28 inches  
(710 mm) maximum above the ramp surface

The 80-inch vertical clearance height does not 
apply to elevated accessible routes. This allows 

for the use of features such as roofs 
and sun shelters.

“Ramps” serve as a 
continuation of the 
accessible route from 
the ground allowing 
individuals who use 
mobility devices to 
access elevated com-
ponents. The guide-
lines require that play 
areas containing 20 
or more elevated play 
components provide 
ramp access to at least 
25 percent of those 
elevated components.

41

40

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �5

When ramps Are required
Ramps are required on composite structures with 20 or more elevated play components and 
must connect to at least 25% of the elevated play components. 

Ramps allow individuals who use wheelchairs and mobility devices to access elevated play 
components in composite play structures without transferring. 

This play area has more than 20 play components and provides ramp access to elevated play components. 
The ramp system, consisting of ramp runs and landings, must connect at least 25 percent of the elevated play 
components. The balance of the elevated play components required to be on an accessible route may be con-
nected by the ramp system, or by a transfer system.

Rise of a ramp is the amount of vertical distance the inclined or slanted surface ascends or 
descends. A ramp run is a length of a continuous sloped surface that is ascending or descending. 
For example, to reach a 12-inch high deck or platform, a designer could use a 12-foot ramp with 
the maximum 1:12 slope, or a 14-foot ramp with a less steeper 1:14 slope.

Platform lifts, also 
known as “wheelchair 
lifts,” may be con-
sidered for providing 
access to elevated 
play components when 
appropriate.  

Where applicable, plat-
form lifts complying with 
ADA/ABA Accessibility 
Guidelines chapter 4 
and applicable state 
and local codes are 
permitted as a part of 
an accessible route. 
Because lifts must be 
independently oper-
able, owners and oper-
ators should carefully 
consider the appropri-
ateness of their use in 
unsupervised settings.

42

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

ramps
For each elevated ramp run: 

• 12-inch (305 mm) maximum rise
• 1:12 maximum slope
• 36-inch (915 mm) minimum clear width

landings
Landings are the level surfaces at the top and bottom of each ramp run.

• Must be as wide as the ramp they connect to
•  A minimum length of 60-inches (1525 mm)
•  If ramps change direction, the 

minimum landing size must be 
60 inches (1525 mm) wide to 
accommodate a turn

Maneuvering Space 
Where ramps are Provided
At least one maneuvering space must be 
provided on the same level as the play 
component. The space must have a slope 
no steeper than 1:48 in all directions (see 
page 34 for further details).

ADA/ABA Accessibility Guidelines 
addresses additional requirements 
for ramps and landings including edge 
protection, cross slope, surfaces, and 
outdoor conditions. 

“Ramps” are sloped 
surfaces that provide 
individuals who use 
mobility devices with 
access to elevated com-
ponents.

43

44

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

Handrails
Handrails are required on both sides of ramps connecting elevated play components.  Handrails 
must comply with the following:

• Clearance between handrail gripping surfaces and adjacent surfaces and shall not be 1 1/2 
  inches (38mm) minimum.
• Handrail gripping surfaces shall be continuous along their length and shall not be obstructed 
  along their tops or sides. The bottoms of handrail gripping surfaces shall not be obstructed 
  for more than 20 percent of their length. Where provided, horizontal projections shall occur 
  1 1/2 inches (38mm) minimum below the bottom of the handrail gripping surface.

In this case, additional handrails have been provided.

Handrails are required to comply with ADA/ABA 505.  However, extensions on handrails in the 
play area are not required. This is to prevent children running into protruding rails in the play 
area.

45

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?



When transfer Systems Are used
A transfer system provides access to elevated play components within a composite system by 
connecting different levels with transfer platforms and steps.

A transfer system provides access to elevated play components without the use of a wheelchair 
or mobility device. At least 50% of the elevated play components can be connected by a trans-
fer system in play areas with less than 20 elevated components. In play areas with 20 or more 
elevated play components, transfer systems may be used to connect up to 25% of the elevated play 
components and the rest of the elevated play components required to be on an accessible route 
must be connected by a ramp.

A transfer system typically consists of a transfer platform, transfer steps, and transfer supports.

Where a transfer system is provided, a combination of transfer platforms and transfer steps 
provide a continuous accessible route to elevated play components. A transfer system provides 
individuals the space necessary to physically transfer up or down in a composite play structure. 
Where provided, a 24-inch (610 mm) minimum width is necessary for individuals moving around 

a structure.

Playful features can be part of the transfer  
system, providing interactive experiences from 
both an elevated or ground level approach. 

Consider the distance someone must travel to 
reach play components accessed by transfer 
systems. On page 31, the illustration shows a 
transfer system placed directly next to the slide. 
Access to this type of elevated play component 
has been carefully designed to minimize the 
distance someone must transfer to reach it.

A “transfer system” is 
an alternative to a ramp 
system in play areas 
where there are less 
than 20 total elevated 
play components.

The transfer system 
must connect to the 
ground-level acces-
sible route and provide 
access to at least 50 
percent of the elevated 
play components.

46

47

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?

U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

Transfer steps in a play 
area are not required 
to satisfy the general 
ADAAG stair require-
ments.

Maneuvering space 
and clear space is not 
required on elevated 
structures or at ele-
vated play components 
reached by a transfer 
system.

transfer Platforms
A transfer platform is a platform or landing that an individual who uses a wheelchair or 
mobility device can use to lift or transfer onto the play structure and leave the wheelchair or 
mobility device behind at ground-level.

• 11 inches (280 mm) to 18 inches 
(455 mm) height of top surface

• Minimum 24 inches (610 mm) 
    wide
• Minimum 14 inches (355 mm) deep 
• Unobstructed side

Adding a transfer step that leads to the 
ground's surface increases access for chil-
dren exiting components at the ground 
level.

Clear floor or ground space - used for parking wheelchair or mobility devices (commonly called 
“wheelchair parking”) - is required at the transfer platform. 

The 48-inch long side (1200 mm) of the “wheelchair parking” space must be parallel to the 24-
inch (610 mm) side of the transfer platform.

48

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?

49



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �0

transfer Steps
• Minimum 24 inches (610 mm) wide
• Minimum 14 inches (355 mm) deep
• 8 inches (205 mm) maximum height

Play areas intended for smaller children 
should provide steps at smaller height  
increments. This will accommodate smaller 
sized children who must lift or “bump” up 
each step.

Transfer steps are level 
surfaces in a compos-
ite structure that can 
be used for transfer-
ring from different 
levels to access play 
components.

50

51

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �1

transfer Supports
Transfer supports must be provided on transfer platforms and transfer steps at each level where 
transferring is the intended method of access.

Materials in a variety of different shapes and sizes are used 
to manufacture transfer supports including metal, plastic, and 
rope.

Aesthetically pleasing cut-out shapes and other design enhancements can provide hand sup-
ports for transferring.

Consideration must be given to the distance between the transfer system and the elevated play com-
ponents it is intended to facilitate. Designers should minimize the distance between the point where 
a child transfers from a wheelchair or mobility device and the elevated play destination.

This transfer system 
 provides access to 

 exciting elevated play experi-
ences like sliding while minimiz-

ing the 
 distance individuals 

 must traverse.

A means of support 
is required when 
transferring into the 
entry or seat of a 
play component.

Transfer supports 
assist individuals 
with transferring and 
general mobility. They 
include handrails, 
handgrips, or custom 
designed handholds.

52

53 54

55

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

connected elevated components
When transfer systems are used, an elevated play component may connect to other elevated 
play components, providing an innovative, accessible route.

A crawl tube is an elevated play compo-
nent in this composite structure. Going 
through the tunnel provides access to 
additional activities on the other side.

Consideration should be given to how a play component is utilized when it is selected to connect 
to other elevated play events. When a transfer system is provided, children move through a play 
component like this crawling tube, using their own strength without a mobility device.

Providing variety and excitement 
through elevated play spaces benefits 
all children. Tunnels and tubes make 
“getting there” an activity in itself.

Elevated play com-
ponents that are con-
nected to other play 
components count 
toward fulfilling the 
requirement for the 
number of elevated 
components on an 
accessible route where 
transfer systems are 
used.

56

57

WHAt Are tHe requIreMentS For AcceSSIBle routeS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

WHAt otHer AcceSSIBIlIty requIreMentS APPly to PlAy coMPonentS?

Elevated play com-
ponents accessed by 
transfer systems do not 
require maneuvering or 
clear floor spaces, 
since mobility devices 
are left at ground level.

Clear floor or ground 
space is also some-
times called “wheel-
chair parking space.”

The minimum clear 
floor or ground space 
on a composite struc-
ture may be positioned 
for a forward or paral-
lel approach. It may 
overlap accessible 
routes and maneuver-
ing spaces.

The play area guidelines address accessible routes connecting play components along with cer-
tain spaces that are crucial to making a play area usable for children with disabilities. The other 
requirements for play components are provided to promote general usability, with application to 
a variety of play components. Additional features will assist in making play components more 
accessible to more children. Designers are encouraged to consider components with back support, 
increased space for maneuvering adjacent to the play component, and other features that promote 
independent use.

clear Floor or Ground Space
Clear floor space - also known as ground space - provides unobstructed room to accommo-
date a single stationary wheelchair and its occupant at a play component on an accessible 
route.

• 30-inch (760 mm) by 48-inch (1220 mm) minimum area
• May overlap accessible routes and maneuvering spaces
• Slope not steeper than 1:48 in all directions

The clear floor 
space is permitted 
to overlap onto the 
landing area to  
provide access to 
this elevated window 
activity. 

Play components come in a variety of shapes and 
sizes facilitating a broad range of experiences. A spe-
cific location for clear floor or ground space has not 
been designated. Each play component is unique and 
the spaces must be placed in the best location for the 
situation.  

This interactive play component 
 has a clear ground space that 

 allows front or side reach interaction.

59

58



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

Maneuvering Space
Maneuvering space is defined as the space required for a wheelchair to make a 180-degree 
turn. At least one maneuvering space must be provided on the same level as elevated play 
components. 

When providing access to ground level and elevated play components by ramps, space allowances 
to accommodate wheelchairs and mobility devices are required.

•  A 60-inch (1525 mm) turning circle permits indi-
viduals with mobility devices to turn around

•  A 60-inch (1525 mm) T-Shaped turn allows an indi-
vidual to change directions by making a series of 
multi-point turns

• Slope not steeper than 1:48 in all directions

Maneuvering space is required for swings and must be located adjacent to the swing. This 
illustration shows options for either a 60-inch turning circle or a T-shaped turn. While this 
illustration shows the maneuvering space to the side of the swing, the space may be located 
behind or in front of the swing as long as it is immediately adjacent to the swing.

Objects are not permitted to protrude into ground level maneuvering spaces at or below 80 inches 
(2030 mm) above the ground or floor surface.

WHAt otHer AcceSSIBIlIty requIreMentS APPly to PlAy coMPonentS?

60

61

62



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �5

entry Points and Seats
Entry points and seats are features of play components where individuals would transfer, sit, 
or gain access. When play components are located on an accessible route, the height required 
to transfer directly to the entry point or seat of a play component has a minimum of 11 inches 
(280 mm) and a maximum of 24 inches (610 mm). A mid-level height of 18 inches (455 mm) 
is recommended.

Examples of entry points and seats include swing seats, spring rocker seats, and crawl-tube 
openings.

Consider design features like open sides, 
back supports, and hand supports to help 
facilitate easy transfer and access.

The height of the entry 
point of a slide is not 
specified.

63 64

65

66

WHAt otHer AcceSSIBIlIty requIreMentS APPly to PlAy coMPonentS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

Play tables
Play tables are surfaces, boards, slabs, or counters that are created for play. This includes 
tables designed for sand and water play, gathering areas, and other activities. Where play 
tables are located on an accessible route, the wheelchair knee clearance minimums are:

• 24 inches (610 mm) high minimum
• 30 inches (760 mm) wide minimum
• 17 inches (430 mm) deep minimum

Play tables designed primarily for  
children under 5-years-old,  
may provide a parallel approach 
instead of knee clearance if the rim is 
a maximum of 31 inches  
(785 mm) high.

The edge of this elevated sand table has 
 been designed to provide access by 

 providing a generous opening. The tops 
 of rims, curbs, or other obstructions that 

would prevent access to a table surface 
should be 31 inches (785 mm) 

maximum in height.  

Play tables may be 
located at a ground or 
elevated level in a com-
posite play structure. 
Consider the route, 
clear floor space and 
maneuvering spaces 
for tables intended 
to be accessible to 
individuals who use 
wheelchairs.

67

68

69

WHAt otHer AcceSSIBIlIty requIreMentS APPly to PlAy coMPonentS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

reach ranges (Advisory)
The play area guidelines include advisory information on recommended reach ranges.

Reach ranges are the recommended designated regions of space that a person seated in a 
wheelchair can reasonably extend their arm or hand to touch, manipulate, move, or interact 
with an object or play component.

Reach ranges should be considered when providing play components with manipulative or interac-
tive features for children who use wheelchairs. Recommended forward or side reach ranges are:

• 20 to 36 inches for 3 to 4 year-olds
• 18 to 40 inches for 5 to 8 year-olds
• 16 to 44 inches for 9 to 12 year-olds

Side Reach     Forward Reach

The reach ranges appropriate for use by children who use wheelchairs to access play com-
ponents are intended for ground-level components, and elevated components accessed by 
ramps. Reach ranges are not appropriate for play components reached by transfer systems.

Appropriate reach range heights will 
vary depending on how the play  
component is accessed. This  
interactive panel is mounted at a 
height appropriate for a child who 
uses a wheelchair.

The reach ranges in 
this guide are recom-
mendations that should 
be considered when 
designing play compo-
nents with manipula-
tive features intended 
for use by individuals 
who use wheelchairs.

70 71

72

WHAt otHer AcceSSIBIlIty requIreMentS APPly to PlAy coMPonentS?



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

Soft contained play structures must provide at least one entry point on an accessible route 
when three or fewer entry points are provided. 

If four or more entry points are provided, at least two entry points must be located on an 
accessible route.

Soft contained play environments typically have limited entrance and exit locations, with play 
components integrated into the system design.

Transfer systems or platform lifts 
can serve as a part of an accessible 
route connecting entry points on 
soft-contained play structures.

“Soft contained play 
equipment” is a play 
structure made of one 
or more components, 
on which an individual 
enters a fully enclosed 
play environment that 
uses pliable materials 
such as plastic, soft 
padding, and fabric.

73

74

SoFt contAIned PlAy StructureS



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page ��

The play area guidelines apply to alterations made to existing play areas that affect, or could 
affect, the usability of the play area. Examples include removing a climbing play component and 
replacing it with a spring rocker, or changing the ground surfacing.

Alterations provide an opportunity to improve access to existing play areas. Where play compo-
nents are altered and the ground surface is not, the ground surface does not have to comply with 
the ASTM F 1951-99 standard for accessible surfaces unless the cost of providing an accessible 
surface is less than 20 percent of the cost of the alterations to the play components.

If the entire ground surface of an existing play area is replaced, the new ground surface must 
provide an accessible route to connect the required number and types of play components. The 
requirements for accessible routes are explained on page 19.

This play area was altered by adding two spring rockers. The seat of at least one spring rocker is between 11 
inches (280mm) and 24 inches (610mm) maximum, and clear floor or ground space and maneuvering space 
is provided.  If the ground surface is replaced in the future, an accessible route would have to be provided to 
the spring rocker.

Normal maintenance 
activities such as 
replacing worn ropes 
or topping off ground 
surfaces are not con-
sidered alterations.

If play components are 
relocated in an existing 
play area to create safe 
use zones, the guide-
lines do not apply, pro-
vided that the ground 
surface is not changed 
or extended for more 
than one use zone.

Replacing the entire 
ground surface does 
not require the addition 
of more play compo-
nents.

75

AlterAtIonS



U.S. Access Board 
A Summary of Accessibility 
Guidelines for Play Areas

Page �0

The Access Board would like to thank the following manufacturers for their generous assistance 
and for supplying appropriate photographs or illustrations: Bob Leathers, Columbia Cascade, 
GameTime, KOMPAN, Landscape Structures, Little Tikes, Miracle, Olympic Recreation, 
Playworld Systems, and Recreation Creations. 

The numerical listing below shows the source of each photo or illustration.

Top Cover Photo - KOMPAN
Bottom Cover Photo - Miracle
1. KOMPAN
2. Little Tikes
3. KOMPAN
4. KOMPAN
5. KOMPAN
6. Little Tikes
7. KOMPAN
8. Little Tikes
9. KOMPAN
10. KOMPAN
11. Landscape Structures
12. Miracle
13. KOMPAN
14. Little Tikes
15. GameTime
16. Playworld Systems
17. GameTime
18. Little Tikes
19. Landscape Structures
20. Miracle
21. Recreation Creations
22. Miracle
23. Miracle
24. Landscape Structures
25. Miracle
26. Columbia Cascade
27. Playworld Systems
28. GameTime
29. KOMPAN
30. Elizabeth Garufi
31. Little Tikes
32. Playworld Systems
33. KOMPAN
34. Columbia Cascade
35. KOMPAN
36. KOMPAN
37. Little Tikes

38. KOMPAN
39. KOMPAN
40. GameTime
41. GameTime
42. GameTime
43. Playworld Systems
44. Landscape Structures
45. Miracle
46. Landscape Structures
47. Little Tikes
48. Landscape Structures
49. KOMPAN
50. Game Time
51. Recreation Creations
52. Miracle
53. KOMPAN
54. Playworld Systems
55. KOMPAN
56. KOMPAN
57. KOMPAN
58. Olympic Recreation
59. Playworld Systems
60. KOMPAN
61. KOMPAN
62. Access Board
63. Playworld Systems
64. Little Tikes
65. Landscape Structures
66. GameTime
67. Playworld Systems
68. Landscape Structures
69. Bob Leathers
70. KOMPAN
71. KOMPAN
72. Miracle
73. GameTime
74. Access Board
75. Miracle

This manual was developed in part through a contract with 
KOMPAN, Inc., 7717 New Market Street, Olympia, WA 98501.

AcknoWledGeMentS


	2016-03-15 AGENDA.pdf (p.1)
	2016-02-16.pdf (p.2-5)
	2016.03.15 REPORT.pdf (p.6-7)
	BudgetReportNew - Parks.pdf (p.8)
	FY14-15.pdf (p.9)
	SmithGroupJJR.pdf (p.10-15)
	Handicap Accessible Play-Guide.pdf (p.16-55)

